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Dear Stuart 

 

Home Building Consultative Forum – May 2019 

 

We refer to the NCAT Consultative Forum for the Home Building (“HB”) List on 21 May 2019.  We 

confirm the feedback points raised by the Owners Corporation Network as follows: 

1. Electronic "filing" or submission of documents to NCAT should be accepted. Courts are all 

moving to this as the preferred filing method. We note NCAT is currently considering utilising 

the Justicelink/eRegistry service used by the main courts, but is having to submit a business case 

for the costs involved.  

 

To the extent OCN can assist or make any submissions in support of such a business case, then 

please let us know. 

2. The current standard directions and short timetable for evidence in the HB List is unrealistic for 

many cases, especially large and complex ones. This is especially so when proceedings are 

commenced to protect the 2 year “non-major” defects warranty period as is now quite 
common, and/or to inspect large schemes.  

 

There is also no allowance for settlement discussions to take place, which NCAT/CTTT was 

previously quite willing to do (and which even Supreme Court allows for) but the clear focus is 

now on progressing matters quickly. We suggest that the standard timetable should be used as 

a guide only, and larger and more complex matters case managed on their merits and facts. We 

would also appreciate a review of the repeated refusal of NCAT Members to adjourn or set a 

timetable even when represented parties agree. 

3. The pleadings process needs to be standardised, with Points of Claim required, and the process 

should require Points of Defence before an Applicant's evidence, so the parties are clear on 

what facts and matters are not in dispute and what needs to be proved. Exchange of evidence 

before closing pleadings is completely inappropriate. 
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4. There needs to be a standard “running order” for the actual Hearing, which currently is not 

standard eg opening submissions, Applicant tender of evidence, Applicant witness evidence in 

chief, etc. 

5. There needs to be a clear written guideline as to when NCAT will expect or provide a technical 

Member for expert conclave, and provide a Mediator or not. There is clearly an internal 

guideline being used, as indicated verbally at Directions by Members, which needs to be made 

clear publicly. 

6. Although more applicable for urgent and/or interim applications in the Strata & Community List, 

we suggest NCAT should provide a duty Member to deal with urgent applications and a clear 

written process for such applications. 

7. There should be a clear written process to deal with applications for leave for legal 

representation on the papers in chambers prior to first Directions, where such can be made in 

sufficient time. Perhaps by inclusion and space for submissions/grounds in the application form. 

8. A standard form should be provided for advising NCAT of the details of legal representative 

appearance after a grant of leave, to ensure contact details are provided and recorded correctly. 

Often the first thing NCAT does is send a Notice of Order indicating grant of leave, addressed to 

the party directly. 

9. We urge NCAT to source an approved or recommended transcription service, to avoid parties 

having differing transcripts from their own services. Perhaps NCAT is able to use the main 

service used by other courts. 

10. Owners Corporations are unable or unwise to appear for themselves. The committee or strata 

manager cannot properly be delegated to. Committees are unpaid volunteers, who should not 

bear this responsibility or inevitable backlash within the strata community. Strata managers are 

not qualified and, in any case, charge their time to attend as Schedule B fees, which are not 

recoverable as costs. When the Owners Corporation is a respondent, legal costs are usually 

covered under any defence costs insurance policy. 

In addition, due to time limitations we did not have the chance to raise the following issues: 

11. OCN supports NCAT publishing all decisions, although in uneditable format, even to parties. It 

was not doing so previously, but has been seeking to do so more recently. 

12. A clear procedure for cross claims is required. Currently these are usually simply dealt with by 

fresh applications then needing to be ordered to be dealt with together. 

13. If section 48MA of the Home Building Act 1989 (as to builder being given a chance to return and 

do work, under a work order) is an issue, then the issue arises as to whether the parties waste 

time and costs on quantum evidence. Even if not an issue, a truncated evidence timetable 

should be allowed, with evidence on liability to be served first then followed by quantum. 

14. There should be a clear process for expert conclaves, as to how these are to be conducted and 

the guidelines for the format of the joint report to be issued, which can be dependent on the 

experience and agreement of the experts, and can sometimes be lacking. 
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15. A party agreeing to not seek costs as part of being granted leave for legal representation can 

often be a condition of granting same, but is arguably breach of the Civil & Administrative 

Tribunal Act. Circumstances entitling a party to a claim for costs may come or arise later. The 

costs jurisdiction/discretion should not be exercised until the end of a case. If an order is to be 

made that there be no costs, this should be "subject to further orders". 

16. Directions are not occasions to be making decisions on preliminary or interlocutory issues - they 

are to case manage matters to Hearing. However, Members can sometimes seek to do so. 

In respect of the latter issues we can, of course, offer additional detail if explanation is required. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

Karen Stiles 

Executive Officer 

 

 


